
RICHLAND-LEXINGTON AIRPORT DISTRICT 
DRAFT AGENDA 

Commission Meeting 
July 20, 2015 @ 4 p.m. - CAROLINA ROOM 

 
 
 

1. Invocation – Larry Koester 
 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Agenda 
b. Minutes of June 15, 2015 Commission Meeting  
 

3. June 2015 Financial Report — Gregg Hornsby 
 

4. Committee Reports 
a. June 18, 2015 Operations, Facilities & Construction Committee 

Meeting 
i. Moving Walkways Discussion 

 
5. Staff Reports 

a. Director’s Report – Dan Mann 
 

6. Discussion & Suggestions  
a. Comments from Public  

 
7. Executive Session 

 
8. Next Meeting is August 17, 2015 @ 4 p.m. 

 
9. Adjournment  

 
 

7/15/15 
 

Page 1 of 25



RICHLAND-LEXINGTON AIRPORT DISTRICT 
DRAFT MINUTES 

Commission Meeting 
June 15, 2015 @ 4 p.m. – CAROLINA ROOM 

 
In Attendance 
David Jordan, Chair; Jim Compton, Vice Chair; Jerry Howard; Larry Koester; Richard McIntyre; Xavier 
Starkes; James Whitmire; Dan Bell; Hazel Bennett 
 
Absent 
Anne Sinclair; Roxanne Wilson; Duane Cooper 
 
Staff Present 
Dan Mann; Gregg Hornsby; Mike Gula; Dee Branham; Deb Taylor; Joel Livingston; Kaela Harmon; John 
Fisher; Lynne Douglas 
 
Guests 
Bob Milhous (Robert E. Milhous, C.P.A., P.A. & Associates); Paul Holt, Ryan Hounshell (Holt 
Consulting); Bud Coward, James Stephens (SC Aeronautics Commission); Jennifer Carroll, Cynthia 
O’Sullivan (Republic Parking) 
 

1. Invocation – James Whitmire 
Mr. Whitmire offered the Invocation. 
 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Agenda 
b. Minutes of April 20, 2015 Commission Meeting 
Mr. Koester made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda which was seconded by Mr. 
Howard. Motion carried. 
 

3. Introduction of Ira E. “Bud” Coward, SC Aeronautics Commission, 2nd Congressional District 
Mr. Coward thanked the Airport Commission for the great working relationship over the 
years. He said that he and staff stand ready to be of service to the Commission and to the 
Airport. Mr. Coward then introduced James Stephens, Executive Director of the SC 
Aeronautics Commission. 
 
Mr. Stephens, who has been full-time in the position since January, said that he is already 
working closely with Mr. Mann and staff. He went on to say that the Aeronautics Commission 
works primarily with general aviation airports; however, they offer assistance to the state’s 
commercial airports for surveying, geo-technical, and paving services. His goal is to be 
available to assist with airport needs and to further aviation in the state. 
 
Mr. Stephens reported that last week, Governor Haley signed a bill exempting sales tax on 
aircraft maintenance and parts which will make South Carolina competitive with other states. 
This new law will go into effect July 1, 2015. 

 

 

Page 2 of 25



 Commission Meeting 06-15-15 

 

Mr. Stephens went on to say that he is looking for additional funding for the state’s aviation 
grant programs. General aviation airports are currently bearing the burden of sustaining 
airport improvement programs across the state as the programs are funded by aircraft fuel 
sales tax. Commercial airlines are exempt from that tax. He would like to see some of the 
commercial airline property taxes provide this additional funding. This would help open up 
additional opportunities for commercial airports as well as sustain the general aviation 
airports. 
 
Chair Jordan thanked Mr. Coward and Mr. Stephens for the work they do for the state’s 
airports and invited them to attend future Airport Commission meetings. 
 

4. May 2015 Financial Report – Gregg Hornsby 
Mr. Hornsby reported that this was a very good month. The increase in cash for the month 
was $383,439, and since January 1, operating cash has increased by $1.5 million. We are now 
at 397 days cash on hand. 
 
Revenues exceeded budget by over $149,000 with parking revenue being the biggest factor. 
Four months of TSA law enforcement reimbursement was also received this month. Expenses 
are close to budget with Airport Operations providing the biggest change. This was due to 
restroom and terminal HVAC repairs. 
 
Mr. Whitmire asked about the effect of the new parking program as relates to the parking 
revenue. Mr. Mann said that when the rental cars move into the lower level of the garage, 
there will be a negative impact on the budget as relates to that revenue. However, he stated 
that we will have opportunities with our new Park & Fly Program. 
 
Mr. Mann reported that enplanements continue to be up because Delta is operating larger 
aircraft on some flights thus increasing our seats, airfares are competitive, and the economy is 
doing well. 
 
Mr. Starkes asked how much of our success is attributed to the marketing campaign. Mr. 
Mann responded that it is difficult to measure directly. He went on to say that, anecdotally, 
the campaign has proven positive. Our campaign encourages people to check our fares first. 
Ms. Harmon advised she will check the analytics on our social media sites and provide a report 
to the Commission. 

 
5. Committee Reports 

a. June 15, 2015 Finances, Contracts & Planning Committee Meeting 
i. Uber Agreement Approval 

Mr. McIntyre put forth the committee’s motion to approve an agreement with Uber.  
 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Page 3 of 25



 Commission Meeting 06-15-15 

 

Mr. Mann explained that Uber started operating in the state nine months ago and 
legislation is still pending to make it legal. Customers have come to expect this service 
as it provides an alternative to taxicabs. The agreement requires that Uber pay a 
$7,000 security deposit, provide GEO fencing, and pay $2 per passenger pick-up. 
Drivers will have to pass background checks and provide proof of insurance. 

 
Motion carried to approve the agreement. 

 
ii. 2014 Audit  

Mr. McIntyre reported that the committee received the 2014 Audit as presented by 
Bob Milhous. He went on to say that it was an unqualified audit and a very good 
report. Mr. McIntyre advised that one item we will need to pay attention to is the 
contingent liability with the state retirement system and the liability it will represent to 
the District. 
 

6. Staff Reports 
a. Director’s Report – Dan Mann 

Mr. Mann said there have been lots of changes in the parking garage with the car rentals 
moving into the lower level and decreasing the amount of covered parking. As a customer 
service incentive, we lowered the Valet rates to match the garage parking rates 
temporarily. At the end of July, electronic signage will be in place to let guests know when 
a level is full. 
 
Mr. Mann went on to say that he would like for the Commission to consider adopting the 
Park & Fly Fast Lane Program which will provide parking at $6 daily in the Surface Lot. 
Participants can sign up with Republic Parking by filling out an application and signing up 
with a credit card. They will then be issued an access badge. When they exit, there will be 
an automatic withdrawal from their credit card. A receipt will be emailed to the user each 
time. It has been suggested that this program be extended to the garage so users could 
utilize the Fast Lane but the $6 rate would not apply.   
 
Mr. McIntyre made the motion to adopt the Park & Fly Fast Lane Program. The motion 
was seconded by Mr. Bell. Motion carried. 

 
7. Discussion & Suggestions 

a. Comments from Public 
Mr. Howard and Mr. McIntyre commended Ms. Harmon on her excellent presentation at 
the recent AAAE Conference in Philadelphia. 
 
Mr. Howard attended the Army Ball commemorating the Army’s 240th birthday and 
reported that it was a great event and well-attended. He expressed his appreciation with 
the opportunity to attend. 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Page 4 of 25



 Commission Meeting 06-15-15 

 

8. Executive Session 
There was no need for an Executive Session. 
 

9. Next Meeting is July 20, 2015 @ 4 p.m. 
 

10.  Adjournment 
Mr. Koester made the motion to adjourn which was seconded by Mr. McIntyre. Motion 
carried. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
Lynne Douglas, Commission Secretary 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Page 5 of 25



1

Page 6 of 25



2

Page 7 of 25



3

Page 8 of 25



4

Page 9 of 25



5

Page 10 of 25



 

RICHLAND-LEXINGTON AIRPORT DISTRICT 
DRAFT MINUTES 

Operations, Facilities & Construction Committee Meeting 
June 18, 2015 @ 3 p.m. 

Summer Lake Drive Conference Room 
 

Attendance 
Larry Koester, Chair; James Whitmire; Xavier Starkes; Jerry Howard; Richard McIntyre; Dan Bell 
 

Staff Present 
Dan Mann; Mike Gula; Dee Branham; Dave Carpenter; Lynne Douglas 
 

Mr. Whitmire asked for a Moment of Silence in remembrance of the shooting victims of the 
Emanuel AME Church in Charleston. 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
Mr. McIntyre made the motion to approve the agenda seconded by Mr. Starkes. Motion 
carried 
 

2. Approval of December 4, 2014 Operations, Facilities, & Construction Committee 
Meeting Minutes 
Mr. Starkes made the motion to approve the minutes seconded by Mr. McIntyre. Motion 
carried. 
 

3. Projects Update 
Mr. Mann presented a PowerPoint (attached to official minutes) highlighting the 
upcoming projects which total approximately $21.8 million. 
 

There was discussion regarding Built Right Construction, a DBE sub-contractor, who bid on 
the ARFF Project with Boyer Construction and the Mechanical Project with Triad 
Construction.  Built Right Construction withdrew their bids from both projects.  Mr. 
Whitmire advised he had contacted the owner of Built Right, and the owner said there 
were issues with Triad’s bidding on the project. 
 

There was also discussion regarding removal of the connector walkways. This issue will be 
discussed further at the July Commission meeting. 
 

4. Discussion/Suggestions 
There was no additional discussion or suggestions. 
 

5. Adjournment 
Mr. Whitmire made the motion to adjourn seconded by Mr. McIntyre. Motion carried. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Lynne Douglas, Commission Secretary 

 

 

Page 11 of 25



CAE Operations Committee
June 2015

Page 12 of 25



ARFF
• ARFF Building is approximately 

60% complete.
• Building interior is essentially 

“dry” which allows interior finish 
and systems work to progress

• Contractor: Boyer Commercial 
Construction

• Construction cost: $5.9M
• Building is scheduled for 

occupation in early August 2015

Page 13 of 25



Mechanical Improvements Phase 1 & 2

• Removal and replacement
– Cooling Towers
– Chiller 4

• Additional ice storage to reduce 
cooling costs

• Construction to be completed Nov 
2015 

• Contractor: Triad Mechanical 
(Charleston)

• Ph 1. construction cost: $1.83M 
• Phase 2 will include control system 

to integrate ARFF, terminal and 
mechanical projects

• Est. Phase 2 Construction cost: 
$1.2M 

• Est. Bid: Winter 2015

Page 14 of 25



TW A1/A2 and TW C

• Reconstruction of A1/A2 with concrete
• TW C will be design and bid as an alternate
• Lighting for TW A will be replaced with LED
• Design completed in October 2015 with Construction in Summer 2016
• Est. construction cost: $4.9M

Page 15 of 25



2014 Lighting and Wayfinding
• Replacement of lighting

– Grand Hall
– TSA check point
– Baggage claim

• Wayfinding will be updated
• Contractor: IPW Construction 

Group (Charleston)
• Construction cost: $740k
• 210 calendar day contract
• 1st phase of terminal 

improvements

Page 16 of 25



2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)
• Updating of carpet & wall finishes
• New podiums at gates for Airline 

use
• Dynamic signage at backwalls and 

gate doors
• Project will incorporate power in 

the gate seating area for 
passengers

• PA and fire alarm system will be 
updated to current standards

Page 17 of 25



2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)

• View of Gates 1-6 with wall sconces removed and lighting 
updated.

Page 18 of 25



2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)
• Wayfinding will be updated to 

complete terminal program
• Lighting will be replaced with LED
• Tile will be incorporated into 

restroom entrances
• Planters in Great Hall replaced 

with smaller, more flexible units.
• Bidding Aug 2015 w/ construction 

early 2016 
• Est. Construction: $2.6M

Page 19 of 25



Movable Walks
• Removal of movable walks

– Additional space at recomposure 
area of security checkpoint

– Exit lane replacement will require 
more space than current walkways 
allow.

– Provides added passenger seating
– Existing system requires $66k of 

annual maintenance
– Replacement vs removal costs

• Replacement ~$750K
• Removal ~$210k

TSA
Check 
Point

Exit

Page 20 of 25



Solar Energy Project
• ConEdison selected to partner to 

investigate options to produce a 
solar energy project

– Garage roof top array
– Ground array

• SCANA Program
• Planning process underway

Page 21 of 25



Passenger Boarding Bridge Program

• Multi year program with Ameribridge LLC
• PBB 8 removed to improve passenger circulation
• Summer ‘15: PBB 7 construction, PBB 10 replacement and PBB 8 Removal
• Replacement of PBB 2 (2016), PBB 4 (2017) and PBB 6 (2018)
• Construction cost: $3.2M

Page 22 of 25



CAE Park & Fly Program
• Park & Fly Fast Lane

– $6 rate for surface lot
– Credit application 
– Email receipt of each use

• Valet Parking Program
– Promotion April 1– July 31 ~ $12
– No coupon or codes

• Park & Fly Premier
– Reconstruction of “Lot A” as part of rental 

car relocation project.
– Access pass 
– Corporate travelers

Page 23 of 25



Rental Car Relocation
• Relocation of RAC into parking garage

– Project funded with CFC, $1.3M
– RAC will pay down bond

• Relocation completed August ’15
• Car counting system being installed to 

provide improved wayfinding to 
customers using garage.

• Public Parking to remain until Car 
counting system is installed.

• Contractor: China Construction 
(Columbia)

• Construction Cost: $1.3M

Page 24 of 25



Apron Grinder Station
• Improvements to reduce sewer 

blockages from plane lavatory 
dump operations

• Contractor: Hammer 
Construction (Columbia)

• Construction cost: $125k
• Work to be completed by Nov ‘15

Page 25 of 25


	Draft AC Agenda 07.20.15
	Draft Commission Minutes 06.15.15
	June Financials 2015
	Operations Cmt Mtg Minutes 06.18.15
	Projects Update 06.18.15 attachment to 06.18.15 minutes
	CAE Operations Committee�June 2015
	ARFF
	Mechanical Improvements Phase 1 & 2
	TW A1/A2 and TW C
	2014 Lighting and Wayfinding
	2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)
	2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)
	2015 Terminal Renovations (cont.)
	Movable Walks
	Solar Energy Project
	Passenger Boarding Bridge Program
	CAE Park & Fly Program
	Rental Car Relocation
	Apron Grinder Station




